
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 7th, 2016.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 



Steven Kessler, Board Member (absent)



Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

Jim Creighton, Board Member 

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there are no changes to the agenda tonight.
*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF MAY 3, 2016 
So moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated nothing.  I’m okay.
With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 16-99    a.
Letter dated May 11, 2016 from Guy Gurney of the Hollowbrook Golf Club requesting a modification to the environmental monitoring program at the golf course and a letter dated March 30, 2016 from John Benvegna of Leggette Brashears and Graham summarizing and commenting on the requested modifications.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you want to come up and sort of discuss whatever it is you wanted to tell us?

Mr. John Benvegna stated Leggette Brashears and Graham consultant for the town.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think you might have been onto something.  Could you introduce yourself first, Mr. Peterson?

Mr. Guy Gurney stated good afternoon, I’m Guy Gurney.  I’m the golf course superintendent at Hollowbrook Golf Club.

Mr. Eugene Peterson stated I’m the general manager at Hollowbrook Golf Club. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and who is actually requesting the modifications to the protocol?

Mr. Eugene Peterson responded Hollowbrook Golf Club.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated thank you.

Mr. John Benvegna stated thank you again, John Benvegna, consultant for the town.  The course requested some modifications to the plan.  Monitoring’s been on-going at the course for 12 years now and it’s not uncommon with a plan like this that changes be made in time, various reasons: one is, typically, when a plan’s put together, a lot of thought goes into it and it’s one of those where it looks good on paper but then when you actually try to put it into process, things need to be shifted a little bit or changed a little bit.  Another thing is, we have now 10 or 12 years of data so when you’re starting a plan, when the course was first built, you don’t have anything, now we’ve got 12 years of data we can look back on so we can make some modifications based on that.  And also conditions of change.  When the course was first built you had construction, you had grow in, now you’ve got a stabilized golf course.  It’s a different atmosphere there.  The course came to the town and said: listen we’d like to make some modifications.  We’d like to try and cut the cost of the program down a little bit if it’s possible.  We keep testing things that don’t make sense.  We took a look at the program and we agreed, we found some things, from our perspective, weren’t really adding anything to the program that if removed from the program and, in our opinion, would have no material effect on the quality of the data.  I’ll go through them – I went through them in my letter and I’ll just step through it now.  I’ll try to point up to it on the – up on the screen is the site plan.  First, we’re talking about eliminating two surface water points; the first one, we call US1 or upstream one.  It’s way up on the right hand corner there.  It’s an upstream sampling point on the Hollowbrook.  It’s upstream, upgrading to the Hollowbrook of the course so that it’s prior to the Hollowbrook entering the course.  Its primary purpose was to obtain data of water quality before reaching the course, basically.  In all honesty, it’s better for them if they have it because if there’s a detection coming from someplace else they could say: hey this is enough.  From our perspective, it doesn’t really add anything between knowing what they apply which in many cases tends to be specific things and in the 10-12 years that we’ve been monitoring upstream one, we never had any significant detections so eliminating that sampling point, from our perspective, doesn’t hurt the program at all or our ability to assess impacts to the Hollowbrook.  We are still keeping downstream one, the more important sampling point from our perspective which would be the stream left hand portion of the stream at the, basically, just about the exit point from where the Hollowbrook would pass the course.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but if you found the problem downstream, wouldn’t you need to know what was happening upstream to address it?

Mr. John Benvegna responded no, it would be incumbent on the course, basically, the burden of proof would be on them to prove it’s not them and between knowing what they apply when they apply things, we’d be able to say – if they said: hey, I don’t use that stuff and they can prove it, then we would have suspicions but basically the burden would be on them to say: this wasn’t us.
Mr. Robert Foley asked so by eliminating that it can’t – they lose that protection there.

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes, that’s their choice.  It’s a little harder for them to say it wasn’t us, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated asked at the work session when we discussed it, and any part of that point or control was a case of – there was a little bit of a development going further upstream at Put Valley Oregon Corners area at the time, I think some was put aside, so if there is new development at the Oregon Corners part, which is quite a ways up, could that have an impact, you know with construction going on at the old gas station there if it ever happens?

Mr. John Benvegna responded it’s possible but in this case we’re focused on the pesticides…

Mr. Robert Foley stated, okay.

Mr. John Benvegna stated that’s really the issue here and pesticides in the Hollowbrook so we’re really focused on a specific quality issue related to golf course activities.  If there was another golf course being built upstream, I’d be a little more concerned.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I doubt there’s room for another housing development along there, upstream, as I recollect the area.  Where they would use pesticides on their lawns or something…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if a large scale development were to come in, we would have them do some monitoring at the stream at some point upstream of the golf course to ascertain if there’s any chemical contaminants, oils, pesticides, etc.

Mr. John Benvegna second surface water point we looked at that we didn’t find was really beneficial to the program at all was what we call SW4.  It is on the opposite side of the Hollowbrook, up at the top of the screen – yes, there you go and that surface water point is not analyzed for pesticides, that’s the way it was written in the plan, so we don’t get any pesticide data from that point anyway.  It gets runoff from a very small portion of the course, very small contributing drainage area.  There was really no useful data coming from that point, from our perspective anyway so eliminating it – and it’s a tributary to the Hollowbrook not the Hollowbrook itself.  From our perspective there’s no useful data coming from that point anyway.  We are in favor of eliminating that one.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated there are monitoring points that are downstream of that so if something were happening in that area it would be detected in the…

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes, downstream one, actually in the Hollowbrook, is downstream of that and there are other tributaries on the other side of the Hollowbrook that we are still monitoring and that are monitored for pesticides.  That was the two surface water points that we looked at eliminating.  Item two: eliminating what we call GW2 which is ground water well two.  We’re not really eliminating it, we’re replacing it.  This well is located in an area near a retention basin and the well head, the area around the well floods with surface water.  It gets inundated with surface water when it rains and it infects the integrity of the well and the samples coming out of the well.  The golf course, at our request, installed another well which we now call ground water well four, it’s in red just next to it, and we installed that well between ground water well two and the Hollowbrook so it’s downgradient of where well two is so if anything was coming past that area, we would see it in well four.  We’re actually really just replacing well two, and not eliminating it because, in our opinion, it wasn’t yielding any representing results.  The results were impacted by surface water run-off into the well.  Again, we have no problem eliminating that point, we actually replaced it with another ground water well.  Then, lastly, item three: discontinuing analysis of what’s called volatile organics, PAHs, fancy name, and metals.  They are parameters that are not really related to the golf course.  They’re not pesticides.  I wasn’t part of the original planning.  I can’t tell you why they were put in there to begin with.  My guess would be they’re petroleum products, they’re related to petroleum products: gasoline and fuel oil.  So my guess would be that they were concerned about that during construction with all their equipment on site and probably storing gasoline on site that that maybe was a concern at the time.  
Mr. Robert Foley stated that was the issue back then.  Pictures of the fuel trucks along the Hollowbrook and that’s why…

Mr. John Benvegna stated that would make a lot of sense at that time.  Mr. John Benvegna stated fortunately now, they’re not spraying the golf course with gasoline so we don’t really have to worry about that.  It doesn’t make sense to continue looking for these things anymore and we’ve never had any detections of them in the 10 or 12 years that we’ve been monitoring so we recommended that those things be eliminated from the analytical protocol.  Lastly, the golf course – there’s been some confusion -- there’s some conflicting statements in the plan about what triggers a storm water sampling event.  One paragraph says it’s a half an inch over 12 hours.  Another paragraph says it’s an inch within a 24-hour period.  We’ve had some back-and-forth with the course on that.  The course has agreed to do a new storm water study, which makes sense.  Now that the course is developed that would be a lot more useful information under the current conditions to have.  Essentially, nothing’s changing right now.  We’re going to continue to implement the storm water protocol that is written in the plan.  If the course does a new storm water study and comes up with a recommended change, we would then come back before the board at that time based on our review.  If it makes sense to us and agree to a different standard, but at this time really, nothing’s changing there.  Other than that, they’ve agreed to initiate a new study.  Other than that, we’re not changing any pesticide analysis.  We’re not changing the frequency.  We’re not changing any ground water sampling, all that’s remaining the same.  If you have any questions, I’d be happy to answer them.

Mr. Robert Foley stated thank you for your hard work over the years.  Eugene and Guy you weren’t around back then but it seems to have worked out, let’s hope that there’s no contamination.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you for your time.  Since there are no more questions on this particular matter…

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we approve this by motion.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.
PB 29-99    b. Letter dated February 25, 2016 from Retro Fitness requesting Planning Board approval for an outdoor fitness area (Retro Fitness) located at Kohl’s Plaza, 3008 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 1 page drawing entitled “Proposed Plan” prepared by Design Architecture LLC., dated March 21, 2016.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t believe there’s anybody here from that so the board is just going to ask that we remove this from the agenda.  
Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chair I make a motion that we remove this from the agenda as per the applicant’s request.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 5-14      c.
Letter dated April 13, 2016 from Glenn Griffin of Hilltop Nursery requesting Planning Board approval of a seasonal farmer’s market and for the paving of the site driveway for property located at 2028 Albany Post Road (Route 9A).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Griffin is not here either.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair, I understand there were a few technical questions and since the applicant isn’t here this evening I move that we refer this back to staff for further discussions with the applicant and then if they’re worked out, for Resolution in July.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 8-15      d.
Letter dated April 18, 2016 from Joel Greenberg, R.A. requesting the 1st six-month time extension of the Lot Line Adjustment approval for the application of John Argiros for a lot line adjustment between two lots located at 26 Forest Lane and 18 Forest Lane.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we do have a Resolution for that.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I move that we adopt Resolution #13-16 in favor of this extension.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 4-14   a. Application of Mongoose Inc. for the property of Mongoose Inc., Commercial Real Estate Asset Management Inc., and JPG Cortlandt Inc., for Preliminary Plat approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal permits for a 6 lot subdivision (5 building lots and 1 open space parcel) of a 128.8 acre parcel of property located on the south side of Maple Avenue and on the east side of Dickerson Road and Hilltop Drive as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Subdivision of Abee Rose Situate in the Town of Cortlandt, Westchester County, NY” prepared by Badey & Watson Surveying and Engineering PC, latest revision dated July 20, 2015.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated thank you Madame Chair.  I’m John Kirkpatrick representing Mongoose and their affiliated entities.  With me here tonight is Fred Wells from Tim Miller Associates.  I submitted the letter to you dated April 22nd, 2016. I don’t think there’s really anything to add to it.  My client’s position is they do not wish to negotiate any further and instead wish to depend on the requirements of state law with regard to the proper actions to be taken with regard to a subdivision application.  Thank you very much.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it is our understanding that there has been communication between yourself – between the applicant and our staff and that our department asked for specific things that apparently have not yet been forwarded to them.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated I’m not aware of anything since my letter of April 22nd.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked no, good?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded after reading through the letter, what you’re referring to Madame Chairwoman, is the Engineering memo that was sent out last November.  If you wish to proceed with the application, I recommend that those comments be addressed point-by-point and then you can proceed with the filing of the plat for approval and construction drawings thereforth.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody on the board who has any comment for this?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked were there discussions with the town over this period?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes, the applicant had multiple discussions with the town in regards to the development and coming to an agreement with the number of lots.  As Mr. Kirkpatrick indicated, the applicant now wishes to proceed with the initial 4-lot subdivision that’s outlined in the April 22nd memorandum, or 5-lot, I’m sorry, 5-lot subdivision in the April 22nd memorandum. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated technically a 6-lot subdivision.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated correct, 5 buildable lots and one open space parcel.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but we never saw a final plan.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated no, we have not.  So, in the interim, as outlined in the summary in the memorandum that was submitted there’s a timeline of fact that Mr. Kirkpatrick and Tim Miller Associates submitted, outlining such, the last actual engineering review memorandum that went out did review the proposal with the 5 buildable lots, comment letter prepared from there.  We have not received any formal comments or updated plans since then and, as I mentioned, if the applicant wants to pursue this subdivision the next step would be to perfect those plans and bring them back to the board for approval.  There’s a lengthy process that needs to be started but the memorandum that was submitted is a good outline of all the items that I will need to see in order to make recommendations for approval.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and you’re ready to begin this process at this point?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we take the position that we’ve made application and it’s up to your board to act in accordance with state law.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is there a time limit at this point that we’re under to move ahead?  You mentioned time limit in your comments.  John?

Mr. John Klarl stated I’m sorry, I missed that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is there a time limit we’re now under in terms of acting on this?

Mr. John Klarl asked where are you in the application process?  

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we are waiting for you to have a public hearing.

Mr. John Klarl stated you’ve submitted your application.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated we’ve made our application.

Mr. John Klarl stated and then since that time, what’s occurred?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we’ve had a couple of years of back-and-forth negotiations about different ways that it might be possible to develop this property.  My client has concluded that those were going nowhere so he’s come back to the original 6-lot subdivision: one for the Town, 5 for my client and he wishes for your board to proceed, one way or another.

Mr. John Klarl asked to answer your question Tom, so what happens is our clock runs when we close a public hearing and have a Resolution.  We haven’t closed the public ahead of a Resolution the clock would run at that point.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so we’re not under a time constraint, not that we don’t want to be but we’re not…

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Kirkpatrick describes, the open end of the subdivision process and he’s hoping to bring it to finality, he should have a public hearing and then…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated you don’t plan to respond to what was last asked, for a new plan?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we’re asking your board to proceed.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked just based on the last plan you sent?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded that is correct.  Based on our application.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the applicant feels that some of the comments that were submitted in my review memorandum is a little too advanced for a preliminary hearing for the 5-lot subdivision.  My contention is, not all the points have to be addressed but a lot of them should be looked at and evaluated, plans revised and then submitted and then we can proceed in a normal process if they wish to make the motion to schedule a public hearing we can proceed after that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m not clear here at all.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated what I was just going to say, we’re going to refer it back until he’s satisfied with getting the information he needs to present it to us.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated but we had a site walk with you and your clients and I thought there were changes that were suggested and agreed or discussed either at the site walk or afterwards and we were going to be getting changes or whatever based upon our comments at the site walk and stuff.  So, now you want us to go back to the 6-lot subdivision that was prepared prior to that and erase everything else?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we did in fact submit changes to staff and we’re not able to achieve a reasonable conclusion so we’ve come back to the original 6-lot subdivision.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m going to be clear on the date for that; that would be July 20th, 2015, according to our write up here…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded I’m sorry, what date is that for?

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the chronology?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, no, there is a particular 5 page set of drawings entitled Subdivision of Abee Rose, latest revision, latest revision dated July 20, 2015.  Is that what we need to be working from in order for us to move ahead and try to approve your…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated Mr. Wells tells me that is correct.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and just for the record Fred, is that your response to some of the concerns raised at the site inspection about rearranging some driveways and things like and then we met after that wanting more detail.  So, I think maybe those plans have been slightly revised from the original submission, the July 20th, 2015 plans?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded they were definitely studied in multiple ways.  I don’t believe the plan itself was revised because we never came to an agreement as to what was acceptable for revising…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so we’re back to square one is what we’re saying?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so your preference is to move forward with our discussions of certain things that were considered at the time close to unacceptable, we haven’t voted but there were things that were discussed and you said: yes that makes a lot of sense, and you want us to push those aside.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated because in staff review to determine what would really be required to do those things they were not feasible so we want to go back to the agreement that we made with the Town Board for a 6-lot subdivision: one to the town, five to my client.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, but the Town Board didn’t discuss the site plan, they didn’t discuss…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated that’s not their issue.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated exactly, that’s our issue, that’s why we’re here.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated their issue was, in accordance with our agreement with them, their issue was to use their best efforts to persuade your board to proceed with our application.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and which we did.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated proceed but not approve.  Is that what you’re suggesting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we proceeded with the application.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the chronology that was attached to your April 22nd letter is key, especially at the bottom next to the last page and at the bottom of the last page.  July, August 2015 the bottom of page, whatever that page is and then to-date a public hearing has not been scheduled and we never acknowledged – you’re saying we never acknowledged the proposed plan, the cluster and to have the town have 106 acres of permanent preservation, your last line.  That’s your chronology, correct?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded yes sir.

Mr. Robert Foley stated okay.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but it does seem that the original application showed some drawings with a date of May of 2014 so the July 2015 drawings do reflect some sort of a modification, not a change in the lot count but some sort of modification.  So, just to be clear, you’d want – and we’ll have to discuss this, but you would want them to analyze the July 20th drawings, not the May drawings?

Mr. Fred Wells stated July 20, 2015 is a revision date of that May…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but that is called the latest revision.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated and I believe those are the plans set that was reviewed by myself indicating in the review memo that was submitted to your office, with my recommendation being that those items start to become addressed in which, once they are to my satisfaction, we recommend the next step being scheduling of the public hearing for that 6-lot subdivision.  So, you have a little work to do to revise the drawings before the public hearing is scheduled but we hear you in your request to move along the application.  It would start with addressing some of the comments that were presented in my review memorandum.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and that’s the process for every application.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked do you disagree with that as part of the process?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated our position is that with every change we’ve tried to make, it has never approached the agreement that we had for a 6-lot subdivision.  It’s never possible.  We had to give up at least one lot, then two lots, then three lots and it simply became not possible, therefore, my client has decided he does not wish to proceed any further and simply to go back to the application as was made, to say to your board, proceed as you will but he does believe you have a requirement to proceed in some fashion.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, so on that 6-lot subdivision there’s a review memo that your clients are supposed to address those technical details that were requested, not on a 3 or a 4 or a 2-lot subdivision, it was on the 6. 

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated that is your position.  We understand that.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated no, it’s not my position, that’s our process…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated we understand that.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so, you’ve stated your position that you’d like us to move forward…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated in accordance with state law.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, in which we fully intend to follow.  Is it your position that you will provide no further response to the technical memo?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded that is correct.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated okay.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we’re stuck.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re not stuck.  We’re going to review it and we will certify and pass what we can pass and…

Mr. Peter Daly asked in accordance with state law we have to do our due diligence as well don’t we?  And, if we make a request then the applicant, I think, is bound to at least to respond to the request if at all possible.  It’s a two-way process.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated he has an option. If he chooses not to respond to the memo then we go ahead and we do what we need to do.  The memo is an attempt to get you to see what issues we feel and our experts feel need to be looked at.  If you choose not to respond to them, we have no other option but to move the application as is and either okay it or deny it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and that’s the 5-lot arrangement?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated 5 building lots.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated 5 building lots, one open space.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s where we’re at now then, okay.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked question for staff; is the application complete enough for us?  Do you have plans appropriate enough for us to proceed to move to our hearing, our public hearing so that we can properly address site plan issues with the level of detail that we request of all of the applicants that come before us?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded my recommendation is that the applicant address the majority of my comments, not in complete detail, because some of them are extremely technical that you would get at the time of final approval, but there are certain aspects of that memorandum that should be addressed, namely making sure that they can site the septic systems, they can site a storm water basin for detention are requirements for run-off reduction along with providing a better profile and horizontal alignment for the road infrastructure on the cul-de-sac.  If those items can be addressed, and revised which I believe we’ve had conversations with Mr. Wells and also Badey & Watson Engineering and Land Surveying to address those, then yes, they would be able to proceed to a public hearing and then further comments would arise from that meeting and subsequent review memorandum.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Mr. Kirkpatrick, are you getting what…

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded we will not be responding further.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated but you understand our position.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated absolutely.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so, as we had recommended, I think you need to refer this back so we can have additional discussion with counsel.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated oh, we will definitely do that, definitely.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m lost in this.  There’ll be no response to the review memo.

Mr. John Kirkpatrick stated correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so we’re going to proceed with evaluating…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we have to determine if it can go to public hearing in its proper form.  In its current form if it can go to a public hearing.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the 5-lot subdivision.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated a 5-lot subdivision, it could go to public hearing but we – what typically would happen is the drawing would be designed to such a point as to make technical staff happy that it meets all of our requirements and then it would go to public hearing but I’d like to discuss that with our attorneys.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and again, if it does not meet the kinds of specs that you need to move it to the next step, I guess it just gets stuck where it is or it has – you can’t move it if it can’t be moved because it doesn’t have all the necessary specifications or clarifications that you want.  If we don’t get them, I don’t see how he expects that we’re going to approve this material.  How does that happen?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s my point.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right, but I guess staff is saying that they probably want to make sure with counsel that if an applicant says they want to cut short the process and not provide all the level of detail that every other applicant has to provide, whether it’s appropriate for it to move forward to a public hearing if that’s what they demand.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated exactly.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so I think that makes sense.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated very well summarized.

Mr. John Klarl stated that crystallizes the discussion, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we need to get clarity that if they’re willing to go forward with the public hearing on a plan that your staff will deem incomplete that maybe our counsel will say you can do that.  The outcome of that process may not be positive…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but, for the record, we have discussed with this applicant what we need in order to help this application become a successful application.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated correct, we have reviewed the 6-lot subdivision that the applicant has proposed and we have our recommendations and comments to move it forward to the next step of the application process which would be the public hearing.  The applicant is contending that they have provided enough information to move it to that stage, the public hearing.  So, we’ll check with staff attorneys and come back and report back to the board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, just so we don’t belabor this any longer, I think what we’re going to do, Mr. Kirkpatrick, is refer this back then the conversation can be held between you and staff and whomever else is necessarily involved and then we’ll see where it goes from there.  Okay?

Mr. John Kirkpatrick responded understood.  Thank you very much.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair, I move that we refer back to staff to determine the next step by the next meeting?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know that it will happen by the next meeting though, do you think?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated to give us some update by the next meeting anyway.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you think we can get updated?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so it’s referred back and then update for July.  Thank you very much.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you in July.


*



*



*

NEW BUSINESS:

PB 2-16      a.
Application of Alan Pregno and Ronald and Sandra Bugara for a lot line adjustment between two existing lots located at 634 and 632 Cardinal Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Lot Line Adjustment Map prepared for Alan Pregno and Ronald and Sandra Bugara” prepared by Erik Link, P.L.S. dated May 5, 2016

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they’re not here.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they’re here.  I just said they didn’t need to speak unless you wanted them to speak.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a standard lot line adjustment but as I mentioned at the work session, both this and the other lot line adjustment may have conditions associated with them.  We need to double check.  There are certain outbuildings associated with one of the existing houses.  We would have to confirm that they don’t need variances.  We may want some additional information on the drawing but it’s ready to be conditionally approved.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, it’s straightforward.  Very good.  All right then.  We are going to refer this back and I think we’ll have, hopefully, a Resolution shortly.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, for the preparation of a Resolution for the next meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were on the question, we’re going to get the Resolution for July.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated then that’s taken care of.
PB 3-16      b.
Application of Ananda Salon & Spa, for the property of SMS Heating & Consulting, for Site Development Plan approval and for a change of use from a daycare center to a spa for property located at 100 Oregon Road as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Plan for Ananda Salon & Spa” prepared by Michael Berta, R.A. dated May 23, 2016.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening.
Mr. Michael Berta stated good evening.  Michael Berta, architect for the applicant.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you want to discuss with us what it is you plan to do with…

Mr. Michael Berta stated currently, as the building sits as a former daycare which has been out of business for a number of years and what the applicant is looking to turn it into is a salon and a spa.  What there will be is: the first floor of it will be used as for hair cutting and wash, things like that, your normal salon.  Upstairs will be -- second floor will be used for facials, more private treatments.  We will be providing handicap access in the treatment room on the first floor, converting bathrooms into handicap and making the building fully handicap-accessible as well.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the purposes of the TV could you hold up the elevation?  We hadn’t seen the elevation before.

Mr. Michael Berta stated I did not have this in time to submit because we were rushing for the Memorial Day Holiday to get it in.  What you’ll see – I’m sure that everybody’s familiar with the building, we’re bringing it back to some of the Victorian elements by removing a lot of the aluminum siding, going back with some heavy trim here and we’re putting a small addition over on this end and then this is our handicap ramp that we’ll be putting in.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the ramp is where?

Mr. Michael Berta responded it’s right over here, if you can see it coming on the side.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the west side of the building?

Mr. Michael Berta responded yes.  There’s an existing emergency exit door there now that we’re going to be converting that into the handicap entrance.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s adjacent to the two handicap parking stalls on the left side of the TV screen.  Chris is going to highlight it, and the ramp’s right over there where the cursor’s moving.

Mr. Michael Berta stated currently that’s an existing emergency exit that we’re going to be converting into the handicap…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are there any questions?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked just a quick question about the level of services the operators of the spa and whatever services are provided there will be properly licensed?  Do you have any…

Mr. Michael Berta responded absolutely.  The owner is in attendance as well tonight.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what kind of private services are you referring to?

Mr. Michael Berta responded over here, I’ll tell you what?  Let me have the owner come up and he can better explain it.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated there are a couple of levels of spas that have been presented in the past so I just want to get a feeling of what’s there.

Mr. Sharif Sams stated I own the property located at 100 Oregon Road.  The type of level of services will definitely be licensed services.  Licensed cosmetologists, licensed massage therapists, which you get from New York State Licensing Board and licensed estheticians.  Anyone providing services in the building will be required to have a license issued through New York State.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so as part of the prior spa applications that we’ve had before we asked for some type of a floor plan so we’d see – I’m assuming if you’re going to have massage therapy or whatever, you’re going to have tables and beds, chairs, whatever, so it’s probably appropriate that we continue to be consistent on those levels as well.

Mr. Michael Berta stated you say floor plan, you’re looking for furniture layout?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded yes, for the various levels of service.

Mr. Michael Berta stated that’s not a problem at all.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that we did discuss at the work session is that we do notice that, obviously you own the building, you’re doing some clean-up, that’s all fine but I do think that we would like that any trees that you’re proposing to remove not be removed until we start going through the process with the Planning Board.

Mr. Sharif Sams stated at the present time we haven’t done any – it’s just been cleanup so we’re not going to be doing any removal…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but your plan does show some trees to be removed and we’d like to discuss that as part of the review of the project.

Mr. Michael Berta stated absolutely, there will be no site work done, obviously, until we get some sort of approval from the board, either a full site plan approval or at least approval at some point in time to start removing the trees.  Any work that’s being done at this point in time, there will be some – we’re going to be talking to Mr. Rogers about doing some selective demolition on the inside of the building just so we can expose some of the existing structure, get rid of some of the moldy carpeting, things like that, that are in there at this point, but no major changes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you know whether anybody had been using this building prior to your purchase of it?

Mr. Michael Berta responded it was being maintained but not really used.  There’s a couple – the original owners had – I think they ran a couple of small, little businesses out of it but and very meticulously maintained.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the original owners just did a nursery, a daycare nursery.

Mr. Michael Berta stated that was the parents.  I believe it was the kids were doing like – they were renting desks, their own business.  They were doing something out of it but the building itself is actually cleaned once a week.  There was not buildup of dust.  It was actually in very good shape.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated my daughter went to that nursery school so I’m very familiar with that building and there was nothing going on in there but nursery, daycare when she was going there.  I don’t know who had it afterwards but there was nothing – but there was an infant area, there was younger kids and then the upper grades and the elementary school and it didn’t go any further than that.

Mr. Michael Berta stated my understanding is that after the daycare closed that they were – one of the owners was using it as just a desk space or something.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t really know myself.  It’s been a long time since she’s been at that school.

Mr. Robert Foley stated for many years it was the Flying Goose.  The McKechnie’s owned it.  My wife was the master teacher there years ago and then – I didn’t know there was another use going on after that.  I have two questions on parking for whatever their plans are.  I would also like to see a better explanation of what spa aspects of this would be.  Do you have another spa business elsewhere?

Mr. Sharif Sams stated I do, I have a business in Mohegan Lake.  It is located in the Village Green shopping plaza, which is, if you’re familiar where IHOP is located, it’s the plaza that is to the left of IHOP.  There are several businesses over there.  Mine is Carla’s Hair Salon.  Inside Carla’s Hair Salon we’ve been in business for 10 years and I have treatment in that business also.  Now, there is another nail place and foot spa and stuff in that plaza.  That is not mine.  Mine is just Carla’s Hair Salon.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it’s Carla’s and it’s just a hair salon not an actual spa.

Mr. Michael Berta stated there are existing treatment rooms in there, but it’s not a full blown spa.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked would you be retaining that space or are you going to move?

Mr. Sheriff Sams responded yes.  No, that one will stay there.
Mr. Robert Foley stated and the reason you want this is to expand and have more clientele?

Mr. Sharif Sams responded correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what about the parking? We have no idea the projection of…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well, they have a parking plan.

Mr. Michael Berta stated I believe that we’re over.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we had a preliminary pre-site, pre-application meeting with the applicant and we went over a majority of items, parking being one, site work being another, renovations and what can and can’t be done as the process is moving forward.  We’re all sort of in agreement with how the procedure is going to pushed through.  There’s a very well developed set of preliminary plans that were included in your packet and once it’s referred back we’ll create a formal review memorandum to address the other concerns, parking being one of such concerns.
Mr. Robert Foley stated do you know if public water and public sewer?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded correct, yes.

Mr. Michael Berta stated there’s actually a sewer easement that runs to the back of the property.  We’re already connected to it.  It’s actually, the amount of use, the amount of water will be very similar to the daycare usage.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there wouldn’t be any concern then because – Hollowbrook is several properties removed……
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked can you give us a sense of the hours of operation just so we know what you’re thinking?

Mr. Sharif Sams responded typical hours of operation: my other place, we are open seven days a week.  Sunday, Monday and Tuesday is 9:30 to 5:30.  Wednesday, Thursday and Friday is 9:30 to 8:30.  There really is no need to be open past 8:30, 9:00 for our type of business.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did I miss Saturday?

Mr. Michael Berta stated Saturdays is 9:30 to 8:30 as well.

Mr. Sharif Sams stated sorry about that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked Sunday you said 2:00 right?

Mr. Sharif Sams responded Sunday, 9:00 to 5:30.  We close at 5:30.  Now, initially when this place starts it probably won’t be open seven days a week.  It probably will be open five, until I actually get the business up to where it can support seven days.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated one of those five days would probably include a Saturday?

Mr. Sheriff Sams responded yes, absolutely.  Saturday is hair salon day.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there was no historical significance to that building?  It wasn’t registered?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.  They’ve done a lot of work already and met with staff.  The Building Department had a lot of comments that they’ve already shared with the applicant.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I didn’t look at this thoroughly, so the third floor, where the dormers are, that would be utilized too?

Mr. Michael Berta responded just as offices.

Mr. Robert Foley stated not as living – no one would be living there.

Mr. Michael Berta responded no.

Mr. Michael Berta stated the former use when it was a daycare was for offices.  We’re just going to maintain that use as well.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if there aren’t any other questions, I think…

Mr. John Klarl stated just one comment, Chris you remember when they did the subdivision down the hill from there, we had a study conducted inventorying the Victorian principles that we use on the properties in this area and to be used on future buildings and don’t know if we still have that study around.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you’re talking about the Valley View subdivision?

Mr. John Klarl stated the Valley View, we conducted a study by an architect about Victorian principles.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the future re-use of this building is somewhat critical to the town, given the historic nature of the area.  Just quickly looking at that rendering it seems like they’re making an effort to preserve it but that will be a comment in the review memo that the future treatment of that building should be in keeping of the character of Van Cortlandt Manor and other buildings in the vicinity which I think you’re doing.

Mr. Michael Berta stated we were actually trying to – one of the things we are trying to do is follow the…

Mr. John Klarl stated looks like you’re done that but we had a study we actually conducted.  I wonder if we could hand it out to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll look for it.  I have to go to the storage room for it.

Mr. John Klarl stated I didn’t mean for you to do that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated time flies, because that would be almost 30 years ago.

Mr. Michael Berta stated we’ve already tried to, not even knowing that the study was there.  Given the character of the neighborhood we tried to bring it back to its old glory.  So, if you have a study, we’re happy to follow it.
Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s a definite plus in what you’ve shown there.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated and in the review memo, you point out the tree issue.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes.

Mr. Michael Berta stated if you can, you can go, I’m not sure if you can get to it but page 3 we actually have a demo plan on the site showing that the trees are being removed.  It’s…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated that’s part of our concern.  We’d like to talk to you about that.

Mr. Michael Berta stated on the drawing, right there, you can see part of the building…

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s Oregon Road.

Mr. Michael Berta stated right there, where it says remove. – right there, those trees there are getting removed.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked because?

Mr. Michael Berta stated we’re expanding.  We need to with getting handicap with a new entrance in, we need to move the driveway forward a little bit so we’re going to be removing them but we are putting them back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked those are not the huge evergreens?

Mr. Michael Berta responded no, these are the smaller ones.  The evergreens are actually off to the right.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked over here?

Mr. Michael Berta responded yes, they’re over in that area there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the landmark tree, the evergreen, stays closer to Oregon Road?

Mr. Michael Berta responded yes, the trees closer to Oregon Road are staying.  There is a survey that has all the trees on there but we’re taking away the smaller ones, now they are tall but they’re the ones right in front of the building that’s actually blocking the building.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and you said you put them back…

Mr. Michael Berta responded we’re putting – there’s a tree planting plan so we are putting – we’re not putting them back in that exact spot…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no I understand.

Mr. Michael Berta stated but we are putting other trees.  For every tree we take out we’re putting one back.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this project would be subject to our tree Ordinance and I know that you included a re-planting plan either internally or with an outside consultant.  We’ll take a look at it.  Confirm that we’re happy with the one’s you’re proposing to replant.

Mr. Michael Berta stated I think we’re actually going back two to one what we’re taking out, plus we’re doing, with the ramp, we’re doing a lot of just other plantings around the building itself – but what our desire really is, is taking out the trees that are blocking the building because we need to expand the drive area but it’s also to be exposed the building to the road because right now you’re driving down you can barely see the building as you’re driving down the road.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there used to be a pool in the back…
Mr. Michael Berta stated that’s going away.  Pretty much everything, all this site area where you can see right there, all the kid areas and the pools – the pools are in disrepair to begin with but they’re all going away.  We’re going to fill them back in and create it back into lawn space.

Mr. Robert Foley stated further west, I don’t know if you still own it, but going behind the gas station almost…

Mr. Michael Berta stated the garages, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated oh that’s right, that’s yours too.

Mr. Michael Berta responded yes sir.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is that all cleaned out?  It used to be a mess.

Mr. Shariff Sams stated we’ve been working on getting that cleaned out.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we love clean.

Mr. Robert Foley stated all the way to the side street which is what…

Mr. Michael Berta stated there’s no – the use of those is just going to be for storage for the owner.  There’s no commercial plan for them at all.  We’re just going to clean them up and rebuild whatever we have, fix them up and that’s it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated for the review memo right?

Mr. Robert Foley stated for the review memo but also we had discussed trees and all that…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but that’s going to be in the memo.  Okay, very good.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Michael Berta asked I just have one question, maybe two: the review memo, will I have that in enough time so that I can make any corrections I need to, to get back onto the July meeting?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we make no guarantees.  We’ll try.

Mr. Michael Berta asked and then the second one is a submission for the July meeting.  I know I have it here.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well see that’s the problem, the submission for the July meeting is probably two weeks from today, roughly, two weeks from tomorrow I think so that means we have to get it out pretty fast, get it to you and we’ll try our best.  I think the submission date’s something like June 22nd or 23rd I think.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you may actually just have to wait until the August date.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but we’ll try.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if we can’t put together a formal review memo, at least bullet-point as many of the larger items in advance so you can start to tackle those.

Mr. Michael Berta stated okay.  I mean if we have to we could always just submit a partial – would it be acceptable to see the…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded and we’d like to move along so the next step after the review memo is the Planning Board goes out, does a site inspection, but we’ll see how we’re progressing.

Mr. Michael Berta stated okay, excellent.  Thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Michael Berta asked do you want me to leave this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, I’m going to ask for it as part of the review memo so that’s fine.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 4-16      c.
Application of Michael Casolaro, as contract vendee for the property of Maria Tamaoka, for Site Development approval and a Special Permit for a Specialty Trade Contactor for MCAS Roofing and Contracting, Inc. located at 2006 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan, MCAS Roofing & Contracting, Inc.” prepared by Joseph Riina, P.E. dated May 20, 2016.

Mr. Thomas Kerrigan stated good evening members of the board, Chairperson, my name is Thomas Kerrigan and I am a Civil Engineer working for Site Design Consultants, the project engineers.  The project is located at 2006 Albany Post Road in Croton and it is zoned Highway/Commercial.  It is proposed to seek a Special Use Permit for Specialty Trade as proposed use of this is a contracting, roofing business.  It is also proposed to expand the existing asphalt driveway with a gravel storage area which will be used for the storage of roofing materials and things of that nature.  The area, the wooded area adjacent and around the material storage area will be re-graded as necessary to accommodate this area.  Any trees will need to be removed.  The area will be surrounded by a six-foot high chain link fence with a gate installed, secure.  The area will be stabilized with silt fencing and erosion blankets as needed.  I’d now like to turn it over to Michael Casolaro, the contract vendee.
Mr. Michael Casolaro stated good evening.  I just wanted to introduce myself.  I’m the owner of MCAS Roofing.  I’m taking a little bit of a risk doing this.  Currently I am closing on a mortgage, a cash-out mortgage, on Friday.  I just want to give you a little bit of the history and I’m hoping this works out for my company.  I currently have a home office and I rent a shop where I park my trucks and I store my materials.  It’s a very small area.  I actually work out of a steel storage container so I don’t need a lot of area.  I run a small business.  I don’t sub-contract.  All my work’s in house.  All my guys work under me.  My father owned a roofing company.  I grew up doing the work.  I have a lot of respect for the trade so it would be a small, well-managed – it’s a reputable company, good reviews and I’ve been doing this my entire life.  I’m looking for somewhere that I can of course park just a couple of pickup trucks, the idea behind the storage area.  I don’t buy a lot of materials. I don’t sell materials.  There wouldn’t be a lot of storage.  Most of it, if you look at the drawing, there is a basement that you can pull up to so most of my equipment would be stored in the basement, out-of-sight but occasionally you come back in the afternoon and there’s something on the truck; a couple of bundles of shingles left over, something you’re going to return, a couple of garbage bags so just to keep it out of plain view with everything looking neat and clean the idea was just to have a storage area at the top.  That was the reason for that, not that intend on any massive amount of storage.  I just want to keep everything neat and clean and I run a nice little business so I hope you’ll consider…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this use is pretty much the exact definition of a Specialty Trade Contractor.  It is not a contractor’s yard because they’re not permitted in this zoning district but the Specialty Trade Contractor where he’s going to have office use, a couple of vehicles and a very small area for storage is exactly what the Specialty Trade Contractor section of the zoning code was written for.  Based on meetings, it was actually suggested to do this small storage area rather than – because the applicant did say that he didn’t think he needed much space.  He could do most of it in the basement but we thought it would be better idea to fence something in, in case he needed any small area for outdoor storage.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I’ve got to ask a question.  How much frontage along the road do you have?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded I’m sorry I didn’t hear that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what is the frontage on this road that you have, on Albany Post Road?  How many feet?
Mr. Tomas Kerrigan responded it looks to be about …

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated 23 feet.  Looks like more than 23 feet.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked less than 60 feet?

Mr. Thomas Kerrigan responded yes.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated 65 to 70 feet would probably be the max limit based on this site plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked let me ask you this.  You know I’m kind of crazy about how things look on roads but is it absolutely necessary for you to use chain link fence?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded no.  That was just a start, just an idea, another fence is a possibility; a PVC fence, something looks a little different.  I considered possibly putting the vinyl slats you see in fencing so you can’t see what’s inside.  I’m open to whatever you like.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but you still need the chain link to do that.  This is a personal kind of thing for me.  I just can’t stand chain link fencing.  It sort of – it isn’t a nice looking thing and it sort of brings – I think it brings areas down.  I know why you do it, because you want to protect your property but I think over time, the more that you see in a community, the more you tend to think of it slightly less positive way.

Mr. John Klarl stated I think you reacted that way in Brookfield.  Brookfield you pushed against the chain link fence.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they have a nice fence but it isn’t chain link.

Mr. John Klarl stated but they got rid of the chain link.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they got rid of the chain link.  I think it looks nicer.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked is this in the front or is this 300 feet back?

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated by the way, I completely agree with you with the one complaint I had in this engineering company has been great but when I saw the plan, I was not happy with the fence and what we said: this isn’t going to happen today so – but I was considering I could put a higher fence but definitely the chain link is not the best option.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated consider something that would give it a nice appearance.  Something more than chain…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but Loretta, it will not be visible from the road, that doesn’t mean it couldn’t be improved but it’s not visible from the road.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated I’ve spoke to the neighbors and they’re okay with it but you don’t see it.  It’s way – it’s a very large parking lot and it’s up a hill and no one’s going to see it up there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as long as it’s not something that you know, as you’re driving along you immediately notice the chain link.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated not at all.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s what I was pointing out.  I think the end – the goal at the end of this is it looks like an existing house now and it will continue to look like an existing house.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated nothing’s going to change.  I’ll just have one full time office, administrative assistant.  It will be myself in the office and maybe eventually someone else managerial but that’s it; a couple of trucks in the yard.  We leave in the morning.  All my materials are delivered to the site.  I order per job and just need to consolidate things so I can keep an eye on my workers so my office is where I park my trucks and everything’s together.  It’ll create jobs.  I’ll have opportunities for local residents to have employment or sometimes just summer help.  It’s busier in the summer.  Sometimes college kids come home and keep busy. There’ll be jobs and it’s…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s going to be good.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated this is Highway/Commercial as you indicated, I don’t know but what are the uses of the properties adjacent to you?

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated I’m sorry…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the uses, what kind of properties are there adjacent to you?  Are they…

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded residential.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated residential?  Okay.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated two properties over is a commercial.  On either side are both residential.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the existing two-story stucco is a residential use on the property…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated just north of it, what’s that use?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded that’s residential.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is that Miracle?  

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded no, Miracle’s right next to that.  So there’s a residential and then there’s Miracle Home Improvements is commercial and…

Mr. Robert Foley asked what do you mean by next to it?  You mean west of it or towards the river?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the building at the top of the screen for residential.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that I know but where’s Miracle?

Mr. Jim Creighton stated small thing is the map that you have on your plans shows your home address?  It doesn’t show the map of the area.  Just so we’re trying to picture where we are.  Where is the cross street?  What is Albany Post Road and what?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked I didn’t hear you Bob.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there’s a road that goes down.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded Lower Furnace Dock Road.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s across from the supermarket down in the Amberlands Plaza.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that map is not the right map but you guys are asking an awful lot of questions these days because all of these questions will be addressed in the review memo.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated my concern about the residential use on – I don’t know you said on both sides of your property use is currently a residential use, am I correct?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded the one you’re speaking of I did speak to the owner.  He’s a masonry contractor and his yard is actually on the corner of my property.  I don’t know all the logistics.  I don’t get involved with that but he’s very happy.  He’s a masonry contractor.  He knows the deal.  It’s kind of a commercial area.  There’s a supermarket…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s zoned Highway/Commercial as I understand that but I just wondered if you’re going to have – the fencing was an issue of mine too, about the way it looked.  I’m not sure to what degree that’s visible from either property on either side of you.  The other question is: are you going to have any exterior lighting over there?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded nothing’s going to change.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated things like that, other than…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated there may be some lighting there now but on the exterior of the home?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated where your material storage area is.

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded no, there’ll be no lighting.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and that material storage area is a, right now, a wooded area or what is that now?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded yes, semi-wooded.  There’s a hill there.  I don’t know if…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it looks like there’s a lot of asphalt on this site that you’re proposing to use.  Is it possible to move the material storage site onto the existing asphalt?  Would that affect your use or would that benefit your use?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded I’d prefer to have the existing parking but if there’s – it’s possible.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated just not sure how many vehicles – if you can figure out how many vehicles you need and if that gives you enough room, if you could move that…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated I just think that makes it more visible, now I’m coming up to the peak of the hill and you’re going to look up the driveway and see it, set back in the woods a little bit and you’ve got a couple of trees on either side…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would require the parking lot to be stripped off to give us an idea of how many parking spaces are in there and then that gets to Mr. Creighton’s question about whether that area can be pulled forward and then they’re going to go out and take a look at it in the site inspection and they’ll have to make a determination: is it better to put it back “in the woods” or is it better to put it a little forward and they’ll have that discussion with you.  It doesn’t have to be finalized today.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated no, as long as it meets your use and it’s…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated either way, it’s a possibility.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you need room for the trucks for turning ratio and everything right?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded there’s plenty of room.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and that’s maybe why you have a design…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated if you saw the space I’m working out of now, you’d be amazed.  We’re talking 500 square feet.  We run a real tight operation…

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the material storage, do you mean new material and/or…

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded no, you’ve got three pickup trucks.  You come back at the end of the day, sometimes you may have a couple of things to return – small stuff.  That’s a lot more area than I actually even need, but I don’t…

Mr. Robert Foley asked what do you do roofing – any asphalt shingling that you temporarily store it there and then it gets put elsewhere, shipped elsewhere?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded no.  My dumpster’s ordered to the job and they take it from the job.  I don’t bring any debris back to the shop.

Mr. Robert Foley asked no debris coming back?

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated no debris comes back to the shop.  A couple of bundles of shingles that are being returned, half a dozen…
Mr. Robert Foley stated small stuff.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated maybe temporarily but nothing significant.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so we’re going to have a review memo on this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded as fast as possible.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated excellent, so Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff so that staff can work as fast as possible on their review memo and all the other review memos.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated thank you.  Have a good night.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated thank you.

Mr. John Klarl asked sir, can I ask you one question?  Do you have a closing date?

Mr. Michael Casolaro responded my closing is this Friday.

Mr. John Klarl stated thank you.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated the deal is I’m taking out a mortgage on my home, so the closing date on the cash-out is Friday but I have a couple of stipulations in the closing on this residence; one was get the mortgage which will be met Friday, the other is I have, I think it was four months from about a month ago, and then they’re going to start – there’s two contingencies.

Mr. John Klarl stated a lot of times we see it’s subject…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated one is if this gets approved.  If this doesn’t get approved, the deal’s out.

Mr. John Klarl stated and a site trade contractor and getting a permit as a Specialty Trade…

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated as a Specialty Trade, those are the two conditions, right.  Getting a permit as a Specialty Trade and of course the mortgage.  The mortgage is done.

Mr. John Klarl stated subject to both those.

Mr. Michael Casolaro stated I need both met, yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.
PB 5-16    d. Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan approval for an existing industrial building located at 260 Madeline Avenue as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Approval Appian Way Ventures, LLC” prepared by Steven J. Basini, R.A. dated May 10, 2016 (see prior PB’s 6-09 & 7-14)

Mr. Steven Basini stated good evening.  Steven Basini, the Architect for the owner and the applicant.  The owner is Appian Way Ventures, LLC.  Representative tonight is the senior partner Robert Losier.  We are here to submit this application for a site plan approval.  The building is a 41,000 square foot, plus or minus, industrial building at the corner of 6th Avenue, 6th Street rather and Madeline Avenue in Verplanck.  The purpose obviously, the task of the owner is to maintain the property, number one, but most importantly is to keep the space filled.  It is an industrial building with various tenants in there.  In order to make it a business they need to keep the spaces filled.  There are various tenants in there, various uses, square footages, various durations.  There are some in there that come a year or two and then they leave and then there’s some that have been in there for 10 or 20 years.  In an effort to keep the space occupied, the tenant was in the process of trying to rent a space on the second floor, a portion of the second floor to RC Transit, a taxi company who wanted to utilize it as office space.  Their purpose was to utilize it as office, erect a few interior partitions and then also use a portion of the downstairs, a garage downstairs for auto repair of their own taxi cabs.  During that process, it was brought to the attention that the town requested that the site plan, because of there have been incoming and outgoing tenants and this board and the town may not be aware of exactly who’s there right now.  Part of the application was to come here and submit a current tenant plan and a current site plan for this board for review and approval.  There is no proposal to add anything to the building.  There’s no square footage being added to the building.  There are no site changes being added.  The site plan that you see is current.  The only thing that is in there, there are some tenant spaces that may be different from the last time you’ve seen it and there are some tenant spaces that are proposed that are pending right now but we wanted to give you an idea of exactly what you’d be seeing in the upcoming future.  Does the board has any questions?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we did look at it briefly and, once again, we’re going to do a review memo on this but one thing that, at least I was wondering about, is you have vacant spaces which you’re calling ‘vacant office’ and I’m just curious if it wouldn’t be better for you in the long run to call them ‘vacant industrial’ or ‘vacant manufacturing’ or something because that gets to the point that a future use – if that gets approved as ‘vacant office’ and you want to put an auto facility in there, you’ve got to come back to the Planning Board.  So, I’m just curious if you laid them out as offices because you expect that office uses will be going into those.  That’s just something to think about as we do the review memo.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I think we’re also looking at the parking and the reality of what may go in there.  Yes, I think it was a combination of both.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated with the parking, I do notice that you reference the parking Special Permit and that’s something we’ll discuss in the review memo as well because the Planning Board does have the ability to issue a parking Special Permit based on certain factors, if you can convince them that based on the tenant mix that you need less parking.  As part of this approval they can approve that or they can send you to the Zoning Board for a traditional Variance. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated well, I’d love to refer to that right now if you don’t mind?  Is that possible for the record?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded sure.

Mr. Steven Basini stated thanks.  I did talk to several of the businesses and specific of some of the larger demands as parking by the code as required.  K9 Kindergarten, A&N Industry Source – K9 Kindergarten has 16 spaces as required by the square footage of the code.  I talked to them, they said they have about 8 to 9 employees and then they say the customers come in for five minutes, maybe to an hour throughout the day and that they probably never even realized that maximum.  I understand that we have to design for what the code requires but in reality, which is what you’re saying, the actual usage and that’s what I want to express, that there’s probably about 5 to 6 spaces in there that can give or take.  A&N Industry Source is just going to be a manufacturing source building, use, sorry.  That actually is going to be – that space is rather large.  It’s 12 spaces, according to the code.  There’s going to be just a couple of employees.  Essentially, they’re making a joint compound stick.  They’re manufacturing it with a little mixer, they’re packaging it and then they’re storing it in there and then someone will come and ship them out of there when they’re needed.  So, that actually has a space, about 6 to 10 maybe of give-and-take space as well. There’s several throughout here.  Komodo Reptiles has two employees, however, they have several spaces in here in excess of probably 8 to 9 spaces required.  They only have two employees and all they do is basically ship their product out when need be.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what is their product?

Mr. Steven Basini responded their product; mice.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked reptile?

Mr. Steven Basini responded no, mice.  Food for reptiles, live food.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well Komodo …

Mr. Steven Basini stated Komodo Reptiles; Komodo as a Komodo Dragon.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated reptiles but it’s really mice.

Mr. Robert Foley asked no Komodo Dragons?

Mr. Steven Basini responded no, they would be out of product if they were Komodo Dragons there.  There’s also – the auto garages, I know that auto repair places.  I know that they have a high requirement for parking.  In reality, they only a handful of employees as well.  I know they park outside but those come and go really quickly once they repair, they’re picked up.  I’d just like to say, there’s probably about an excess of about 18 spaces – I’m sorry, 28 spaces; 18 from the first box, 10 from the other on the plan – maybe 28 spaces that could be considered variable: 127 were required, 104 are provided, that leaves 23 and the 28.  I think we could argue, possibly that the actual use is less than required.  I know that there’s the flexibility as offered under section 307-34.1 actually is the one I was looking for more specifically that talks about existing uses.  I know that the uses within the building vary but the building itself was approved originally on the site with the square footage and no additional spaces be provided so I was thinking that that might be the flexibility the board would have to approve the parking.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that will be analyzed as part of the review memo.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated in an effort to expedite the revisions to the plans, I just would like you to revise the table to also show the existing septic loading and what you’re able for maximum proposal and what you’re actually permitted for.  So, just include that onto the table to make sure you have the septic capacity on site as well for your proposed uses, because you’ll probably be, with these proposals, less than what was proposed but it would be good to have to make sure that you meet your septic requirements.

Mr. Steven Basini asked can I ask when you’re saying there’ll be a – what’s the memo that you’re referring to?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we have to do a review memo.

Mr. Steven Basini stated a review memo, right, in the meantime, the space upstairs, the Building Permit is pending a review and approval by this board, obviously of the existing conditions.  As I mentioned, it’s an office use now.  It’s vacant but it’s an office use now and it will become an office use with these interior partitions.  Is it possible that that space be granted or allowed to go for a Building Permit under the assumption that it is exactly the same use it has been?  There is no change.  It’s just a different tenant going in there and they’re erecting some interior partitions.  Egress, all those issues will be addressed to the building inspector.  I already met with Martin on that and that’s where all this came up.  Is there a possibility to at least get a Permit on that because it’s not a change of anything that’s here?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked you’re asking only on the upstairs not the parking within downstairs?

Mr. Steven Basini responded not the parking within?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked did you say that there was parking also for the cab company downstairs?
Mr. Steven Basini stated no, that’s exterior.  They’re already there and they’re working on their own taxi cabs.  They’re a current tenant and they have the parking outside. No, the space that we’re looking for is just their office.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so an existing tenant is asking to expand space within…

Mr. Steven Basini responded upstairs, into an office that is currently office or a vacant office to make an office for themselves, yes.  Essentially, to take phone calls and rent cabs.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked but it’s an existing tenant that wants to expand and use and rent more space?

Mr. Steven Basini responded correct, that is correct.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I think that helps.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I know, I think that Michael and Martin would defer to the board.  They would say something like: well, we can’t approve it until you run it by the board, but what I think the applicant is saying, there’s going to be a process for approval of the entire site and can this one particular tenant, subject to Martin and Holly and Michael’s Building Permit issues be quasi-approved so-to-speak – because in practicality they’re already there…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated and this tenant that you’re referring to, the taxi company, they have their New York State licenses for automotive repair?

Mr. Steven Basini responded they don’t and they don’t actually require it.  We passed that through Martin and Holly as well.  I’ve put it on the drawings as well via the motor vehicle, the DMV states that “any person” – these are the exceptions to requiring a motor vehicle license: “any person who is solely engaged in the business of repairing the motor vehicles of a single commercial or industrial establishment” that is themselves.  They are not required to by the…

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked and they’ve been there for how long, you’re only proposing office space, renovations to the office space?

Mr. Steven Basini responded that is all they are proposing at this point, office space and how long they’ve been there: 6 months.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated provided you meet the Building Permit requirements as set forth by our Director of Code Enforcement and the board is okay with it I have no objection.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked I have a fundamental question, I guess I’m a little unclear, is this the first time we’re approving this building with all these current uses?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you’ve approved it…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we’ve approved parts of it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you approved it two prior times: once over under a prior and once under this current owner but they never perfected it.  They never took it all the way to get site plan approval and both, I think what you said is there are slightly different tenant mix from what you approved in 2014 or 2015.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated well, we approve things like the K9 Kindergarten, the paint spray shop and it was sections of it that we got involved in.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that was on our on-going debate, is each time Code Enforcement goes out there they don’t have a starting place to begin with to know what tenant had been approved.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m not saying it’s a bad thing, I’m just…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’re trying to get it frozen in a moment of time where we will know every tenant so therefore, when Code Enforcement goes out there and they see that what used to be an office is now an auto repair facility, they can clearly go back to an approved plan and say “hey that’s different.”  Right now we don’t really have any approved plan. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I don’t have a problem with that, I just – my concern is the tenants probably will change over time whether it’s short term or long term and that will require you, then, to submit those changes to us as they occur?  Am I saying that right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded but that’s what we’re working on, is if it’s office to office, it’s not a change of use, doesn’t even need to come back to you.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s okay.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but right now, we’re not sure if it’s office to office in some respects and we always default to saying, well, that’s got to be run by the Planning Board.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we want to create a snapshot in time that we can use moving forward which we’re hoping is this would be the plan to…

Mr. Steven Basini stated and save your efforts of having to come here every time a tenant goes in, exactly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but if a tenant goes out and it is a change of use, then there’s a process where similar to the Cortlandt Town Center it’s a correspondence item.  It’s relatively quickly depending on the complexity, sometimes it’ll be more than that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and how will that determination be made about the change of use?  Will it be the applicant’s responsibility or…

Mr. Steven Basini responded the building inspector actually.  When we file for a new tenant to come in there, the building inspector…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just want to know what the mechanism is, that’s all.

Mr. Steven Basini responded understood.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated right now, what happens is, our Fire Inspector will go out there quite frequently, inspect this site, make sure everything’s up and running and that’s usually when something is caught and we speak with the applicant or we try to rectify the situation and this is what pretty much caused this application to be made.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated okay, thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well the last time you were here we talked about the whole idea of trying to work with the Planning Department, work with all the departments that are relevant to your business but we need to have this sense that you know, that people don’t just come and get a space from you and then they go on into business and seven months or a year and a half later they come back because we found them there and they want to get permission at that point to be there legally or appropriately.  So, I really do hope that this will be the beginning of something where everybody is on the same page at the same time.
Mr. Steven Basini stated I appreciate that and I can actually just express that in the last two months we’ve actually made several efforts.  I’ve met with the owner and the Engineering Department, the Planning Department, the Building Department, the Fire Inspector on several occasions.  I met with the Fire Inspector right out there at the site.  We’re trying to conform.  We’re trying to do just that.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated another big space, we spoke about K9 Kindergarten; did they express an intention to stay at this site?  I know they’re building another site locally.

Mr. Losier stated they just signed a new 10-year lease.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated great.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess they’re expanding.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated that sounds good.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so we’ll do the review memo as fast as possible.

Mr. Steven Basini asked is there still a discussion of whether or not we can file for the permit for the interior partitions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded Michael has said, provided you meet with certain specific things and I guess we can identify specifically what they are so that if you meet with his approval on these things, then he said we can go ahead and do it.  I’m assuming that you’re going to work with him, get that cleared up and then we’ll go ahead and…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one way to look at it is it would almost be a sort of correspondence item.  There’s a tenant in there.  It’s been run by you that gives enough confidence to the Technical staff that they can work with the applicant to perfect it.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated in the spirit of cooperation with the applicant and owner, we’re willing to do that to move it concurrently during the review.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you want to go see it first or do you just want us to go ahead and approve subject to?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded no, we’re okay with moving forward with them filing the Building Permit.  In my opinion, it’s fine.  We’ll work concurrently with the site plan application to get everything straightened out and buttoned up.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the motion should reflect that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we’re going to refer it back, basically, for you to do your memo and then proceed from there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, refer it back and that you’re going to approve the office tenant space on the second floor subject to the Building Department.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated DOTS, correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair, I’ll move that we refer this back for a review memo and approve the office space on the second floor subject to the Building Inspector’s…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated correct, subject to the Department of Technical Services’ review.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated review…

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Basini stated thank you for your time.  Have a good evening.

PB 6-16      e.
Application of Edward & Anna Wyganowski and Christina DeLuca & Michelle Ocasio for a lot line adjustment between two existing lots located at 178 Cortlandt St. and 3 Crugers Avenue as shown on a drawing entitled “Map Showing Proposed Lot Line Revision prepared for Edward & Anna Wyganowski and Christina DeLuca & Michelle Ocasio” prepared by Robert E. Baxter, PLS latest revision dated April 26, 2016.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do we need to discuss this?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, this is a very thorough drawing done by Baxter.  I guess that your neighbors moved, maybe, and for years you had been driving across what you thought was your property and which is now, not your property and this lot line adjustment will correct that.  If you just want to go up to the microphone and just introduce yourself.

Ms. Anna Wyganowski stated I’m really very impressed by how this board is prepared with details, how everybody seems to know so it’s redundant my providing details but this lot originally was divided into three lots.  The father built two additional houses and he just left a tiny, little, if you look at the map, it’s just 30 feet of frontage.  So, it’s a little more that actual driveway and then it gets a little higher so we think we are just correcting historical and if you look closer, a part of our driveway is actually on the property of the neighbors.  The previous neighbor actually came here and brought the assessor to look to try to resolve this issue and because he didn’t want to address this lot so there was really no way to resolve this.  So, we just wanted to – we just don’t want our driveway to be somebody else’s property even if it’s a tiny little bit of it.  I think it’s clear from the drawing how it is.  Thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so similar to the other – this is definitely approvable.  There may be some conditions as we discussed in the past.  We’re still working out the necessity filing some of these in the county land records office and some of them are not required to be filed based on a discussion with our attorney.  We’ll talk as a staff and this ready for a Resolution for next month.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair, I move that we refer this back to staff and prepare a Resolution for the next meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the question, in other words on the sketch, their property is to the left over here…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s a small portion of property to cover the driveway that encroaches onto the neighbor’s property.

Mr. Robert Foley stated okay.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair, at 8:35 I move that we adjourn.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you so much, so moved.



*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JULY 5, 2016

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
[image: image1.jpg]



X 

SYLVIE MADDALENA

Dated: July 8, 2016
17



